
 
AGENDA OF THE 

UTAH STATE BUILDING BOARD MEETING   
Wednesday, March 7, 2018 

University of Utah Crocker Science Center 
Room 206 

1430 Presidents Circle 
Salt Lake City, Utah 

9:00 am 
 

(Action) 1. Approval of Minutes from the November 8, 2017 Board Meeting 
 
(Action) 2. Approval of Minutes from the December 6, 2017 Board Meeting 
 
(Action) 3. Approval of Minutes from the December 6, 2017 Business Meeting 
 
(Action) 4. University of Utah: Request to Construct Solar PV Canopies in the Merrill Engineering 

            Parking Lot 
 
(Action) 5. Utah State Developmental Center: Demolition Request 
 
(Information) 6. Update on Changes to R23-21 DFCM Lease Procedures  
 
(Information) 7. Administrative Reports for the University of Utah and Utah State University 
 
(Information) 8. Administrative Report for DFCM 
 
(Information) 9. 2018 Legislative Session Update 
 
  10. Future Agenda Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notice of Special Accommodation During Public Meetings - In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
individuals needing special accommodations (including auxiliary communicative aids and services) during this meeting should 
notify Patty Yacks 538-3010 (TDD 538-3696) at least three days prior to the meeting.  This information and all other Utah State 
Building Board information is available on DFCM web site at: http://dfcm.utah.gov/dfcm/utah-state-building-board.html 

http://dfcm.utah.gov/dfcm/utah-state-building-board.html


 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Jeff Reddoor 
Date: March 7, 2018 
Subject: Approval of Minutes from the November 8, 2017 Board Meeting 

 

Attached for your review and approval are the minutes from the November 8, 2017 Board meeting.



 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 

 

MEETING 
 

November 8, 2017 
 
 

 

 

 
 
Members in Attendance: 
Ned Carnahan, Chair 
Chip Nelson 
Gordon Snow 
Lisa Barrager 
Joe Burgess 
Wendell Morse 

MINUTES 

 

Guests in Attendance: 
Jeff Reddoor Building Board 
Patty Yacks Building Board 
Mike Smith Building Board 
Tyson Gregory Building Board 
Tani Downing Department of Administrative Services - EDO 
Cade Meier Department of Alcohol Beverage Control 
Sal Petilos Department of Alcohol Beverage Control 
Greg Peay Department of Corrections 
Rebecca Stay Department of Human Services 
Sarah Boll Division of Construction and Facilities Management 
Taylor Maxfield Division of Construction and Facilities Management 
Tim Parkinson Division of Construction and Facilities Management 
Wayne Christensen Division of Construction and Facilities Management 
Dorothy Taylor Division of Construction and Facilities Management 
Lee Fairbourn Division of Construction and Facilities Management 
Sid Painar AJC Architects 
Jim Nielson Axis Architects 
Russ Galt Davis Technical College 
Sherry Ruesch Dixie State University 
Paul Morris Dixie State University 
T.J. Zafiratos EDA Architects 
Jodi Geroux FFKR Architects 
Jackson Ferguson FFKR Architects 
Kayla Farr FFKR Architects 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
November 8, 2017 
Page 2 

 

Mark Bagley Gordian 
David Garce GSBS Architects 
Tracy Neale GSBS Architects 
Mike Sivulich Jacobsen Construction 
Jeff Palmer Layton Construction 
Bart Adams Layton Construction 
Keri Hammond Marketlink 
Heather Knighton MHTN Architects 
Eric Tholen Michael Baker International 
Chris Coutts NWL Architects 
Julee Attig Reaveley Engineers 
Malin Francis Salt Lake Community College 
Bob Askerlund Salt Lake Community College 
Dennis Klaus Salt Lake Community College 
Jackie McGill Spectrum Engineers 
Brittany Punjabi Spectrum Engineers 
Alyn Lunceford State Courts 
Jolene Chamberlain UFRA 
Robin Burr University of Utah 
Lori Kaczka University of Utah 
Barb Snyder University of Utah 
Barb Remsburg University of Utah 
Natalie Klaus University of Utah 
Rich Amon Utah System of Higher Education 
Tyler Brinkerhoff Utah System of Technical Colleges 
Frank Young Utah Valley University 
Celestia Carson VCBO Architecture 
Nathan Leavitt VCBO Architecture 
Mark Halverson Weber State University 

 
On Wednesday, November 8, 2017, the Utah State Building Board held a regularly scheduled 
meeting in Room 250 of the Utah State Capitol, in Salt Lake City, Utah. The meeting was called 
into order at 9:00 am. 

 
Prior to beginning with the scheduled agenda Wendell Morse, the newest member of the Board, 
took his Oath of Office. Mr. Morse has served Utah State University as their Planning Director. He 
also owns a private design and consulting firm. After Mr. Morse was sworn in, he took his 
position on the bench.  Chair Carnahan then proceeded with the regularly scheduled agenda 

 
 APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE AUGUST 21, 2017 BUSINESS MEETING AND 

BUILDING BOARD TOUR 
Chair Carnahan asked for comments or corrections to the minutes from the August Business 
Meeting and Building Board Tour. No comments or corrections were brought forward. 

 
MOTION: Mr. Nelson moved to approve the minutes from the August 21, 2017 Business 

Meeting and Building Board Tour. The motion was seconded by Mr. Burgess 
and passed unanimously 

 
 APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE SEPTEMBER 6, 2017 BOARD MEETING 

Chair Carnahan asked for comments or corrections to the minutes from the September Business 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
November 8, 2017 
Page 3 

 

Meeting. No comments or corrections were brought forward. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Snow moved to approve the minutes from  the  September  6,  2017 

Business Meeting. The motion was seconded by Ms. Barrager and passed 
unanimously. 

 
 APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE OCTOBER 4, 2017 CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT 

HEARINGS AND OCTOBER 5, 2017 PRIORITIZATIONS AND BUSINESS MEETING 
Chair Carnahan asked for comments or corrections to the minutes from the October 4, 
2017 Capital Development Hearings and October 5, 2017 Prioritizations for FY19. No 
comments or corrections were brought forward. 

 
MOTION: Mr. Burgess moved to approve the minutes from the September 6, 2017 

Business Meeting. The motion was seconded by Ms. Barrager and passed 
unanimously. 

 
Director Reddoor took a few moments to review today’s agenda. Items 7-13 are listed as 
informational items, however, the Board will take action on these items is December’s meeting 
to recommend these requests to the Legislature. Director Reddoor also reminded the Board 
that today’s programming requests (items 14-16) have been approved by the Utah System of 
Higher Education. 

 
 DNR/DIVISION OF WILDLIFE RESOURCES: REQUEST TO NAME THE GEORGE S. 

AND DOLORES DORÉ ECCLES WILDLIFE EDUCATION CENTER AND THE L.S. 
SKAGGS WETLAND DISCOVERY CLASSROOM 

Mr. Fowlks, DWR Director, presented this request.  In September 2017, the Utah Division of 
Wildlife Resources (DWR) began construction on an education center that is located at the Robert 
N. Hasenyager Nature Service in Farmington. DWR is seeking authorization to name the complex 
the George S. Dolores Doré Eccles Wildlife Education Center. The agency is also requesting to 
name the easternmost building the L.S. Skaggs Wetland Discovery Classroom. Both 
organizations have expressed their permission to DWR. 

 
MOTION: Mr. Nelson moved to approve DWR’s request to name the George S. and 

Dolores Doré Eccles Wildlife Education Center and the L.S. Skaggs Wetland 
Discovery Classroom. The motion was second by Mr. Burgess and passed 
unanimously. 

 
 FY19 LAND BANKING REQUESTS 

STATE COURTS: Sixth District Courthouse Manti Land Bank 
Director Reddoor noted that the funding request has been reduced from $475,380 to $250,000. 
Mr. Lunceford, State Courts Facilities Director, reviewed State Courts request to relocate the 
Manti Courthouse citing several security and public safety concerns with the existing facility. 
Potential locations for a new facility are becoming scarce. There were five potential locations 
when this request was first brought forward approximately three years ago. To date, there are 
two. Mr. Lunceford is confident that $250K will allow the State Courts to secure a property for a 
new facility. 

 
Director Reddoor noted that DFCM has a funding account that is dedicated to acquire land. 
Director Reddoor recommended that the State Courts work with DFCM to identify these funds in 
order to complete this purchase. 

 
 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
November 8, 2017 
Page 4 

 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY: Utah Fire and Rescue Academy Relocation Land Bank 
Mr. Black, State Fire Marshal Chief Deputy, presented their request for $3.25M to acquire 15 
acres for the old Geneva Steel property in Orem. The current academy is located near the Provo 
Airport and is owned by Provo City. The city is not interested in renewing this lease, which will 
end in 2025. The academy is used to train firefighters through the use of mobile props, which has 
increased the safety of Utahans. Several of the classes offered at the academy can be transferred 
for college credit. The academy also has plans to relocate other DPS divisions to the area, 
specifically their Driver License Division and the Division of Forestry, Fire and State Lands. Utah 
Valley University has also expressed their desire to continue the partnership with the academy. 
The US Forest Service is also interested in locating a Helibase on the property to help combat 
wildfires. 

 
 FY19 NON-STATE FUNDED CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REQUESTS 

Director Reddoor stated that the following non-state funded requests have a funding component 
that requests either a revenue bond or on-going maintenance, both require legislative approval. 
 
DIVISION OF ALCOHOL BEVERAGE CONTROL: Pleasant Grove – Lehi Market Area Store 
Mr. Petilos, Executive Director and Mr. Meier, Deputy Director for DABC presented a request for 
a new store in the Pleasant Grove-Lehi market area. Alcohol sales have increased significantly. 
Between FY 2012-2017 the DABC has seen an increase of 78% in sales at the Pleasant Grove 
area. The DABC has identified areas within the State for store placement opportunities using 
weighing factors such as; population growth, store performance, and sales per associate hour. 
Currently, the DABC has 45 stores. The DABC is allowed 1 store per 48,000 people. Based on 
current population increases the DABC is allowed to have 65 stores. The DABC is requesting a 
revenue bond for this request, which is projected to cost $5,451,791. 
 
DIVISION OF ALCOHOL BEVERAGE CONTROL: Reconstruction of Store 4 – Foothill 
Mr. Petilos stated that the justification for this store is essentially the same as the Pleasant Grove- 
Lehi request. Sales have grown in the area of Foothill, Sugarhouse, and East Salt Lake from 25%- 
37%. The Sugarhouse and East Salt Lake stores are operating at maximum capacity. The 
remodel of Foothill will allow the DABC to effectively spread out the current workload. The DABC 
is requesting a revenue bond for this request, which is projected to cost $6,500,000. 
 
WEBER STATE UNIVERSITY: Davis Campus Computer and Automotive Engineering 
Building 
Mr. Halverson, WSU Associate VP for Facilities and Campus Planning is seeking approval to 
proceed with a new 45,000 sqft facility for the college of Engineering, Applied Science and 
Technology (EAST) on our Davis Campus, located just south of Hill Air Force Base in Layton. 
This new facility will house several programs that are not currently located at the Davis campus. 
This building will include space for Computer Science, Software Engineering, and Automotive 
Technology. 
 
This proposed project will also include a new intersection on SR-193 that will facilitate a new 
primary vehicular entrance to the Davis Campus. The new intersection and adjoining roadway will 
service the new facility as well as the rest of campus.  The cost for is project is approximately 
$17.6M, WSU has already secured $10M. WSU is requesting $397,810 for on-going 
maintenance costs. 
 
UNIVERSITY OF UTAH: South Campus Student Housing and Dining Services 
President Pershing presented a request for a revenue bond to expand their current student 
housing and dining facilities to add 992 beds, a 650-seat dining area, and a community & learning 
space. The current apartment rental market in Salt Lake City is very competitive with vacancy 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
November 8, 2017 
Page 5 

 

rates below 3% since 2015. Additionally, students that live on campus have a higher GPA in their 
first year and beyond, compared to their first year peers who do not live on campus.   This 
expansion will take place adjacent to Marriott Honors in proximity to Student Life Center. The 
total cost for this project is approximately $105,217,000. 

 
UNIVERSITY OF UTAH: Research Addition to Orthopaedic Center 
Mr. Nye, Director of Faculties, presented the second request from the University of Utah for the 
Research Addition to the Orthopaedic Center, which falls under the Board’s purview for approval. 
The total cost for this project is $2,895,000 and will be funded by the School of Medicine 
Department funds. The Orthopaedic Center needs to expand to the west to accommodate 
increased research opportunities. This is a separate endeavor from the expansion project 
approved previously that addressed clinical needs. This request consists of 4,700 sqft, plus the 
remodeling of 300 sqft. The expanded facility will enhance the surgical skill training provided to 
medical students, residents, and Utah physicians. 

 
SALT LAKE COMMUNITY COLLEGE: Jordan Campus Student Center 
Mr. Klaus, VP for Business Services presented a request to bond up to $16M, which will be paid 
with student fees, to fund a new student center located at SLCC’s Jordan Campus.  Additionally, 
SLCC has secured $10M in student fees that the student body has elected to go towards this 
project.  Mr. Klaus confirmed that student fees have remained the same over the past 10 years.  
The student center will provide student engagement space, a centralized student affairs and 
support area, academic advising, etc. After exploring several options, the most effective method 
has been determined to expand and remodel existing space.  There are concerns with the current 
cost per sqft. at $570/sqft.  Mr. Maxfield, DFCM Project Manager, commented that these 
costs are due to infrastructure changes, specifically placing an underground utility tunnel.  This 
project has not been programmed, which will help better identify costs. The Board would like to 
see SLCC take a conservative approach to the project.  Mr. Snow expressed his concerns 
regarding the use of student fees to fund administrative offices and the O&M needed for these 
facilities.  Mr. Snow also has concerns that these services are already being offered at SLCC’s 
Redwood campus. 

 
UTAH STATE UNIVERISTY: Phase II Space Dynamic Lab Building 
Mr. Cowley, USU’s VP for Business and Finance, presented a request for the Phase II Space 
Dynamics Lab Building to provide the quality and type of specialized space needed to serve its 
growing programs. Phase I is currently under construction with completion anticipated in the fall 
of 2017. The Phase II building will occupy the site directly to the south of the Phase I building, 
and will be connected to the building via a pedestrian bridge. The Space Dynamics Lab (SDL) is 
one of 14 University Affiliated Research Centers (UARCs) in the nation. The SDL facilities are 
located at the USU Innovation Campus in Logan, Utah. Charged with applying basic research to 
the technology challenges presented in the military and science arenas, SDL has developed 
revolutionary solutions that are changing the way the world collects and uses data. The total 
project cost is approximately $31M. USU is requesting a revenue bond that will be paid from 
research revenues. 

 
 DIXIE STATE UNIVERSITY: REQUEST FOR PROGRAMMING OF THE SCIENCE, 

ENGINEERING, AND TECHNOLOGY (SET) BUILDING 
Mr. Morris, DSU Administrative VP, presented a request to proceed with programing for the new 
SET (Science, Engineering, and Technology) Building. This building will be 120,000 sqft and the 
total project cost is estimated to be $52.9M. Programming for this facility is expected to cost 
approximately $240K, which will be paid from institutional funds. The current science building 
was built in 1963 and has since become obsolete. The existing labs are too small for current 
classroom needs.  Programing is expected to be completed within five to eight months. 

 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
November 8, 2017 
Page 6 

 

MOTION: Mr. Nelson moved to approve DSU’s request for programming of the SET 
(Science, Engineering, and Technology) Building. The motion was second by 
Mr. Burgess and passed unanimously. 

 
   WEBER STATE UNIVERSITY: REQUEST FOR PROGRAMMING OF THE NOORDA 

ENGINEERING & APPLIED SCIENCE BUILDING 
Mr. Halverson, WSU Associate VP for Facilities and Campus Planning, presented a request 
to proceed with programming for the Noorda Engineering and Applied Science Building that 
will replace the existing technical education building on WSU’s Ogden Campus. The 
Noorda Engineering and Applied Science Building will be 128,000 sqft and will cost 
approximately $49M. Programming for this facility is expected to cost $445,000, which will be 
paid from institutional funds. The new facility will consolidate several engineering and 
technical trades programs that are currently located in various buildings throughout campus. 

 
MOTION: Mr. Snow moved to approve WSU’s request for programming of the Noorda 

Engineering & Applied Science Building. The motion was second by Mr. 
Burgess and passed unanimously. 

 
 UTAH VALLEY UNIVERSITY:  REQUEST FOR PROGRAMMING OF THE 

NEW BUSINESS BUILDING 
Mr. Young, UVU’s Associate VP of Facilities Planning presented a request to proceed with 
programming of a new business building.  This building will be 180,000 sqft and is projected to 
cost $71M. Programming for this facility is expected to cost $485K, which will be paid from 
institutional funds. 

 
MOTION: Ms. Barrager moved to approve UVU’s request for programming of a new 

business building. The motion was second by Mr. Burgess and passed 
unanimously. 

 
 DAVIS TECHNICAL COLLEGE: REQUEST FOR PROGRAMMING OF THE 

ALLIED HEALTH BUILDING 
Mr. Galt, DTC’s VP of Administrative Services, presented a request to proceed with programming 
of the Allied Health Building. The total project cost is approximately $35.6M. Davis Technical 
College has raised an estimated $1.3M for this project. Programing for the Allied Health Center is 
expected to cost $155K and will take up to six months to complete. 

 
MOTION: Mr. Snow moved to approve DTC’s request for programming of the 

Allied Health Building. The motion was second by Mr. Morse and 
passed unanimously. 

 
 DFCM: AMENDMENTS TO RULE 23-5, CONTINGENCY FUNDS 

Mr. Kelley reviewed the amendments to R23-5. No substantive changes were made. 
 

MOTION:   Mr. Burgess moved to file the amendments for R23-5. The motion was second 
by Mr. Snow and passed unanimously. 

 
 DFCM: AMENDMENTS TO RULE 23-9, COOPERATION WITH LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT PLANNING 
Mr. Kelley reviewed the amendments to R23-9. R23-9-3(2) has been removed for clarity. 

 
MOTION:   Mr. Burgess moved to file the amendments for R23-9. The motion was second 

by Ms. Barrager and passed unanimously. 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
November 8, 2017 
Page 7 

 

 DFCM: AMENDMENTS TO RULE 23-21, LEASE PROCEDURES 
Mr. Kelley and Mr. Fairborne, DFCM Real Estate Manager, worked together to bring R23-9 into 
current statute.  Substantive changes have been made to the advertisement and the solicitation 
of proposals for new leases.  The renewal of leases has been extended from 120 days  to nine 
months.  DFCM will also notify the agency of expiring leases 12 months in advance, instead of 
six months. 

 
Mr. Nelson inquired if DFCM conducts a market study analysis of comparable properties when 
renewing a lease. Mr. Fairborn stated that DFCM does conduct a market study analysis as part 
of the renewal process; however, this procedure is not documented in rule. The Board would like 
to review R-23-21 in their next business meeting to identify additional changes prior to filling. 

 
MOTION:    Chair Carnahan moved to continue the discussion on amendments to R23-21 

at the December Business Meeting. The motion was second by Mr. Nelson and 
passed unanimously. 

 
 APPROVAL OF THE 2018 UTAH STATE BUILDING BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 

The schedule presented was approved with the following changes: 
• February’s meeting will be held at the University of Utah’s Crocker Science Center 
• The Capital Development Tour will be moved to August 9-10 

 
MOTION: Mr. Snow moved to approve the 2018 Building Board schedule with the 

abovementioned changes. The motion was second by Mr. Morse and passed 
unanimously. 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
• Mr. Kelley stated that R23-13 and R23-22 will be brought forward for five-year review in 

December’s meeting. 
 

• Director Reddoor would like to review the Board’s justification for the FY19 Prioritizations 
 

 ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOTION:      Mr. Nelson moved to adjourn the meeting.  The motion was second by Mr. 
Burgess and passed unanimously. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 11:00 A.M. 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Jeff Reddoor 
Date: March 7, 2018 
Subject: Approval of Minutes from the December 6, 2017 Board Meeting 

 

Attached for your review and approval are the minutes from the December 6, 2017 Board meeting.



Utah State Building Board 
 

 

MEETING 
 

December 6, 2017 
 
 

 

 
MINUTES 

Members in Attendance:  
Ned Carnahan, Chair 
Chip Nelson 
Gordon Snow 
Joe Burgess 
Wendell Morse 
Joe Ligori  
 
Guests in Attendance: 
Mike Kelley   Attorney General’s Office  
Jeff Reddoor   Building Board 
Patty Yacks   Building Board 
Mike Smith   Building Board 
Tyson Gregory  Building Board 
Tani Downing  Department of Administrative Services 
Dorothy Taylor  Department of Administrative Services - DFCM 
Lee Fairbourn  Department of Administrative Services - DFCM 
Nick Radulavich  Department of Administrative Services - DFCM 
Jim Russell   Department of Administrative Services - DFCM 
Cade Meier   Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 
Sal Petilos   Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 
Don Brinkerhoff  Department of Human Services 
Debbie Whitlock  Department of Human Services - DJJS 
Cecil Robinson  Department of Human Services - DJJS 
Jolene Chamberlain  Department of Public Safety - Fire Academy 
Miranda Jones  Governor’s Office of Management and Budget 
Kevin Griffin   Utah Department of Transportation 
Sid Painar   AJC Architects 
Steve Kieffer   Big D Construction 
Fran Pruyn   CRSA 
Jodi Geroux   FFKR Architects 
Trenton Jones  FFKR Architects 
Tracy Neale   GSBS Architects 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
December 6, 2017 
Page 2 

 

Jeff Palmer   Layton Construction 
Karen Abarca  Marketlink 
Lindsay Balling  Reaveley Engineers 
Malin Francis  Salt Lake Community College 
Deneece Huftalin  Salt Lake Community College 
Bob Askerlund  Salt Lake Community College 
Tiger Funk   Southern Utah University 
Brittany Punjabi  Spectrum Engineers 
Ken Nye   University of Utah 
Ben Berrett   Utah State University 
Rich Amon   Utah System of Higher Education 
Joseph Demma  Utah System of Technical Colleges 
Tyler Brinkerhoff  Utah System of Technical Colleges 
Mark Halverson  Weber State University 
 
On Wednesday, December 6, 2017, the Utah State Building Board held a regularly scheduled 
meeting in Room 250 of the Utah State Capitol, in Salt Lake City, Utah. The meeting was called 
into order at 9:00 am. 

 
 APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 7, 2017 BOARD MEETING 

Chair Carnahan asked for comments or corrections to the minutes from the November Board 
Meeting, two corrections were identified.  The first correction is to Item 10 (page 5) FY19 Capital 
Development Projects: Salt Lake Community College’s Jordan Campus Student Center. Mr. Snow 
indicated that he would like to see the comments on student fees and cost per square feet to be 
reflected in the minutes.  The second correction is on paragraph 2 (page 2), which states that Mr. 
Morse owns a private construction firm. This will be corrected to reflect that Mr. Morse owns a 
private design and consulting firm.       
 
MOTION:  Mr. Nelson moved to table the approval of the Minutes from the November 7, 

2017 Board Meeting until the next scheduled meeting. The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Burgess and passed unanimously 

 
Chair Carnahan diverted from the scheduled agenda for Joe Ligori to take his Oath of Office.  
After Mr. Ligori was sworn in, he took his position on the bench.  Chair Carnahan then proceeded 
with the agenda. 

 
 DHS: DIVISION OF JUVENILE JUSTICE SERVICES – REQUEST FOR 

PROGRAMMING OF THE SALT LAKE MULTI-USE YOUTH CENTER 
Ms. Whitlock, DJJS Deputy Director; Mr. Robinson, DJJS Administrative Services Director; and 
Mr. Childs, Project Architect presented a request to conduct programming for the Salt Lake Multi-
Use Center.  The current facility, the Wasatch Youth Center, was built in 1962 and is one of the 
oldest facilities in the DJJS system.  Seismic studies from two engineering firms were completed 
on the Wasatch Youth Center, which identified significant structural issues with the facility.  These 
issues pose safety risks to the youth residents and DJJS employees that occupy the building.  
JRCA Architects has performed an in-depth feasibility analysis, which determined that remodeling 
these facilities is neither cost effective nor recommended.  Instead, DJJS would like to move 
forward with demolishing the Wasatch Youth Center and rebuilding a multi-use center on the 
current site.  Additionally, DJJS’s Decker Lake facility will be sold and operations from this facility 
will be moved to the new multi-use center.  This consolidation is expected to save $2.7M annually 
and improve efficiency.  This project will cost an estimated $39M to complete.  DJJS anticipates 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
December 6, 2017 
Page 3 

 

contributing approximately $5.5M in funds from sale of two facilities, Decker Lake (located in West 
Valley City) and Weber Valley Detention Center (located in Roy). Today’s request is for DJJS to 
proceed with programming for this project using agency general funds.  The cost for programming 
is approximately $400K.  There is currently not a set sale date for these properties; however, Roy 
City has expressed their intention to purchase the Weber Detention Center.  The $39M project 
cost does not reflect the two potential sales.  There was discussion on whether the funds from 
these sales could go back to DJJS for future use.  Mr. Kelley, Board Counsel, cited 63A-5-215 (2). 
 
Mr. Snow inquired what analysis has gone into the proposed 40-bed count.  Ms. Whitlock explained 
that changes in juvenile justice reform will reduce the number of youths that serve time in these 
facilities and that 40 beds is projected to meet DJJS’s needs over the next ten years.  Additionally, 
design criteria will be included in the facility to allow for an additional housing pod with minimal 
disruption if needed.        
    
MOTION: Mr. Nelson moved to approve the request for programming of the Salt Lake 

Multi-Use Center contingent that DFCM oversee the programming process.  
The Board also requests that DJJS report to the Board at a future meeting 
once programming is complete.   The motion was second by Mr. Burgess and 
passed unanimously. 

 
Chair Carnahan diverted from the scheduled agenda.  Item 9, University of Utah’s Research 
Addition to the Orthopaedic Center was presented next. 

 
 UNIVERSITY OF UTAH: RESEARCH ADDITION TO ORTHOPAEDIC CENTER 

Director Reddoor clarified that this non-State funded remodeling project falls under the 
Board’s purview to approve for construction.  The total cost of the project is approximately 
$3M and no funds for capital improvement or O&M will be requested.  This project is 
included in the University of Utah’s Master Plan.   
 
MOTION: Mr. Snow moved to approve construction for the University of Utah’s 

Research Addition to the Orthopaedic Center.  The motion was second by Mr. 
Morse and passed unanimously. 

 
 FY19 LAND BANK PRIORITIZATION: STATE COURTS SIXTH DISTRICT 

COURTHOUSE AND DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY UTAH FIRE AND RESCUE 
ACADEMY RELOCATION LAND BANK 

The IGG has requested the Board to prioritize the land bank requests received this year.  Courts 
will work with DFCM to explore the option of funding their land bank request through the Land 
Option Fund Account.  Mr. Russell confirmed that the request has increased from $250K to $300K.  
DFCM offered to present to the Board with a Notice of Intent once a property has been selected.  
The Board has concerns with DPS’s Utah Fire and Rescue Academy Relocation request.  The 
current lease has approximately seven years remaining and there is a concentration of commercial 
development occurring at the old Geneva Steel site.  Mr. Snow also suggested that the academy 
explore collaborating with one of the colleges in the USTC system. 
 
Due to the possibility of State Court’s request being potentially funded by DFCM and the current 
concerns with DPS’s request the Board elected to postpone the prioritization until January’s 
meeting.  DFCM has agreed to present an update on State Court’s request in January’s meeting.  
Additionally, the Board will also schedule DPS to present in January’s meeting to address questions 
and concerns regarding their land bank request. 
   



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
December 6, 2017 
Page 4 

 

MOTION:  Chair Carnahan moved to table the FY19 Land Bank Prioritization until the 
January meeting due to the abovementioned concerns. The motion was 
second by Mr. Snow and passed unanimously.    

 
 FY19 NON-STATE FUNDED CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REQUESTS 

The following requests were reviewed for recommendation to the Legislature. 
 
Department of Alcohol Beverage Control: Pleasant Grove – Lehi Market Area Store and the 
Reconstruction of Store 4 – Foothill 
Mr. Petilos stated that the Pleasant Grove request is essential to grow DABC’s building program 
in order to meet continued demand.  The DABC is 18-19 stores under what quota currently allows 
for.  However, it is important that stores are sustainable once in place.  The project will be paid 
with a revenue bond.  Ongoing funds will be requested from the Legislature for O&M. 

 
MOTION:  Mr. Nelson moved to recommend both the Department of Alcohol Beverage 

Control’s Pleasant Grove – Lehi Market Store and the Reconstruction of 
Store 4- Foothill to the Legislature for bonding approval. The motion was 
second by Mr. Ligori and passed unanimously.    

 
Weber State University: Davis Campus Computer and Automotive Engineering Building 
Mr. Halverson stated that this request is donor funded and that $10M has been raised to date.  
Today’s request is to proceed with programming. Ongoing funds will be requested from the 
Legislature for O&M.  
 
MOTION:  Mr. Burgess moved to approve programming for Weber State University’s 

Davis Campus Computer and Automotive Engineering Building and to 
recommend the request to the Legislature for ongoing funds to be used for 
O&M. The motion was second by Mr. Morse and passed unanimously.    

 
University of Utah: South Campus Student Housing and Dining Services 
Mr. Nye presented the request for a revenue bond to pay for project costs as well as O&M.  
 
MOTION:  Mr. Morse moved to recommend the University of Utah’s South Campus 

Student Housing and Dining Services to the Legislature for bonding approval. 
The motion was second by Mr. Nelson and passed unanimously.    

 
Salt Lake Community College: Jordan Campus Student Center 
President Huftalin presented the request for approval of a revenue bond of up to $16M for SLCC’s 
Jordan Campus Student Center.  Additionally, SLCC has acquired $10M in student fees for this 
project.  SLCC is seeking to obtain bonding approval prior to beginning programming, which is 
estimated to cost between $700-800K.  The bond would be purchased for the amount identified 
after programming has been completed. 
 
The Board expressed concerns regarding the CBE’s they have received for this project.  The first, 
created last November indicated a $26M.  SLCC has worked with DFCM to produce a CBE with 
a total project cost of $16M.  President Huftalin stated that the first CBE was designed around 
building a new facility.  The $16M CBE is designed around remodeling an existing building.  Mr. 
Russell also stated that there was some confusion on how the secured funds were represented 
on the CBE.  SLCC will be requesting bonding approval of up to $16M in conjunction with the 
$10M secured for this project.  At this time, the total project cost is estimated to be between $20M-
$26M. 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
December 6, 2017 
Page 5 

 

Mr. Snow expressed concerns that the project isn’t well-defined at this time and that SLCC should 
explore funding this project through the state-funded Capital Development process.  Mr. Amon 
and Mr. Russell confirmed that it is not unusual for an institution to request bonding approval from 
the Legislature without a program in place.  President Huftalin confirmed that O&M for the student 
center will be paid through a funding model that is consists of using a portion of student fee dollars 
for O&M.  President Huftalin also confirmed that SLCC pays rent for administrative office space 
in student centers; generating revenues back to students.  Director Reddoor confirmed that there 
is a statutory requirement that the institution must establish a funding plan for lifetime O&M of the 
facility once programming has been completed.  There was discussion on the size of the facility, 
at 45,000 sqft., and having these student services already available at SLCC’s Redwood campus.  
Mr. Russell stated that SLCC is projecting that the Jordan campus will become the main campus 
for their institution and that the size is to accommodate future growth. 
 
There are concerns regarding the total cost per square feet at approximately $570/sqft..  Mr. 
Russell stated that this cost is aligned with other development projects and cited the rising cost 
of construction. He also stated that SLCC’s decision to explore renovating existing space, rather 
than building new is a sign that the institution is making an effort to address this concern. 
 
Mr. Snow addressed a concern that SLCC does not have the requirement to report back to the 
Board once their recommendation has been given for this project.  President Huftalin agreed to 
report back to the Board once programming has been defined to address this concern. 

 
PROPOSED  
MOTION:  Mr. Morse moved to recommend Salt Lake Community College’s Jordan Campus 

Student Center to the Legislature for bonding approval up to $16M.  This 
recommendation is contingent upon a conservative program being completed and 
approved by DFCM.  The bonding request shall reflect the amount determined 
once programming is complete.  With no second to this motion, it fails. 

 
PROPOSED  
MOTION:  Mr. Snow moved to not recommend Salt Lake Community College’s Jordan 

Campus Student Center to the Legislature for bonding approval up to $16M and 
strongly encourages Salt Lake Community College to use institutional funds to 
begin preprograming in order to better define the project.  With no second to this 
motion, it fails.  

 
MOTION:  Mr. Morse moved to recommend Salt Lake Community College’s Jordan 

Campus Student Center to the Legislature for bonding approval up to $16M.  
This recommendation is contingent upon a conservative program being 
completed and approved by DFCM.  The bonding request shall reflect the 
amount determined once programming is complete.  Salt Lake Community 
College will report back to the Board once programming has been completed 
as an informational item.  The motion was second by Mr. Nelson and passed 
with a 3-2 vote. 

  
 IN FAVOR: Mr. Nelson, Mr. Burgess, Mr. Morse 
 OPPOSED: Mr. Snow, Mr. Ligori 

 
Utah State University: Phase II Space Dynamic Lab Building 
Mr. Berrett presented the request for a revenue bond for Phase II of the Space Dynamics Lab, 
which will cost approximately $31.3M and is 75,700 sqft.  Programming has been completed. 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
December 6, 2017 
Page 6 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Morse moved to recommend Utah State University’s Phase II Space 
Dynamic Lab Building to the Legislature for bonding approval. The motion 
was second by Mr. Burgess and passed unanimously.       

 
 FIVE-YEAR REVIEW OF R23-13: STATE OF UTAH PARKING RULES FOR FACILITIES 

MANAGED BY THE DIVISION OF FACILITIES CONSTRUCTION AND MANAGEMENT 
Mr. Kelley stated that no recommended changed have been received R23-13 and suggested that 
a Five-Year Notice of Review and Statement of Continuation be submitted. 

 
MOTION:  Mr. Nelson moved to approve the Five-Year Notice of Review and Statement of 

Continuation for R23-13: State of Utah Parking Rules for Facilities Managed by 
the Division of Facilities Construction and Management. The motion was 
second by Mr. Ligori and passed unanimously.       

 
 FIVE-YEAR REVIEW OF R23-22: GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR ACQUISITION AND 

SELLING OF REAL PROPERTY 
Mr. Kelley advised that possible amendments to this rule may be brought forward in upcoming 
legislation.  At this time only minor technical changes have been made involving compliance with 
existing statute references. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Snow moved to approve the Five-Year Notice of Review and Statement of 

Continuation for R23-22: General Procedures for Acquisition and Selling of 
Real Property. The motion was second by Mr. Burgess and passed 
unanimously.    

 
 ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS FOR THE UNIVERSITY OF UTAH AND UTAH STATE 

UNIVERSITY 
Mr. Nye delivered the administrative report for the University of Utah. There were 16 professional 
service agreements and 7 construction contracts issued. There is one area to highlight for 
construction contracts: 
• Items 6 and 7; Projects 22128, HCI Level 1 Grossing Lab and 22130, HCI Level 3 Anatomic 

Pathology While these are separate projects in every way, they are happening at the same 
time in the Huntsman Cancer Institute Building. In order to avoid coordination issues with two 
contractors in the same building at the same time (although on different floors), the bidding 
of these projects was coordinated to result in the same contractor being selected for both 
projects. 

 
There is an increase of $32,748 to the Project Reserve Fund that reflects residual balances in 
capital improvement funds.  This leaves a balance of $797,480 in the account, which is considered 
adequate to meet anticipated demands for authorized projects.   
 
There are no increases to the Contingency Reserve Fund and a small decrease of $8,585 to 
cover small unforeseen conditions and design errors.  Analysis indicates that the current balance 
of $3,164,718 is adequate to complete the projects that have been authorized and it does not 
reflect an excess balance. The balance is currently at a high point as FY18 funding has been 
moved into the Contingency Reserve and FY18 projects have not yet started construction. 
 
Mr. Berrett delivered the administrative report for Utah State University.   There were 3 
professional service agreements and 8 construction contracts issued. There is one area to 
highlight for professional contracts: 
• Item 1: Design services have been awarded for a trail through the Brigham City Campus 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
December 6, 2017 
Page 7 

 

One project contributed $8,767 and 3 projects needed funds ($20,255) from the contingency 
reserve fund during this reporting period. Based on an internal risk assessment, the University 
finds the balance of $92,185 to be adequate. 
 
One project contributed $3,127 the project reserve fund during this reporting period. Based on an 
internal risk assessment, the University finds the balance of $588,086 to be adequate. 

 
 ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT FOR UDOT 

Mr. Griffin presented the administrative report for the Utah Department of Transportation.  Four 
new salt sheds have been designed and advertised under one bid package for the benefit of 
economy of scale.  These shed are located at: 
• I-80 MP40 @ Knolls 
• Boulder Satellite Maintenance Station 
• Mt Carmel Maintenance Station 
• I-70 Exit 108 Lone Tree 

 
The bid for this project has come in at $150K over budget.  UDOT has agreed to provide additional 
funding to cover the bid.  These projects are expected to be completed by the end of the fiscal 
year. 

 
A new location is currently being considered for the Salt Lake West Maintenance Facility as 
contaminants in the soil have been discovered in the proposed Godfrey Trucking site, deeming it 
unsuitable for this project.  UDOT currently owns the property; however, an element of this project 
is to sell the land as excess property.  Three alternative sites are currently being considered.  
Construction is anticipated to begin next fiscal year. 

 
An emergency repair to the sewer system at the Tie Fork Rest Area is currently being finished. 
The bid for the project came in at $250K over the estimate, which was funded out of UDOT’s Land 
and Building funding.   
 
The Cottonwood Maintenance Facility is approximately 95% complete.  This is the largest 
maintenance facility in the UDOT system and has dedicated space for avalanche crews.  The 
facility has 12 bays total. 
 
The Snowville Maintenance facility is currently under construction. UDOT and DFCM advertised 
the project and the lowest bid was $700K above the estimate. Project was awarded to Hughes 
Construction. UDOT will make up the difference using available funds from the sale of the Clinton 
Maintenance Station and UDOT Code One funding if needed. 10-15 completion sewer line  
 
The new Morgan Maintenance Station is 100% complete. The Region has moved into the new 
facility. The old Morgan Maintenance Station will be sold as soon as possible to provide funding 
for next fiscal year projects. 
 
The new Monticello Port of Entry Inspection Building is 100% complete and a Certificate of 
Occupancy is pending. 
 
The new Daniels Port of Entry inspection building is 95% complete. Construction should finish 
within the weeks. Certificate of Occupancy will follow shortly. 
 
Mr. Griffin stated that UDOT will be returning to the Board within the next few months to present 
a request for the replacement of the Milford Maintenance Station. 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
December 6, 2017 
Page 8 

 

 ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT FOR DFCM 
Mr. Russell presented the administrative report for the Division of Facilities Construction 
Management and introduced Mr. Radulovich, DFCM’s new Assistant Director and precedes Mr. 
Whittington. 
 
There are no significant updates to the lease report.  In October 44 Professional Services 
Agreements were issued and in November 24 Professional Services Agreements were issued.  
There were 60 construction contracts issued in October and 22 issued in November.   
 
In October, the Capital Development Contingency Reserve Fund started period with $3,472,827 
and ended with $5,449,511 with increase/adjustments of $2,846,816 and 5 transfers to projects 
totaling $870,132.  In November, the account started period with $5,449,511 and had 
increases/adjustments of $83,268 and 4 transfers to projects totaling $142,430, ending with a 
balance of $5,390,349. 
 
In October, the Capital Improvement Contingency Reserve Fund started period with $4,970,875 
and ended with $4,978,955, with 14 increases of $416,782 and multiple transfers to projects 
totaling $408,702. 
• This transfer of $84,300 is the annual transfer to the DFCM Admin Budget per Legislative 

Appropriation 
In November, the account started period with $4,978,955 and ended with $6,001,657, with 6 
transfers to projects totaling $36,719 and multiple transfers to the fund of $1,059,421.   

 
The Contingency Reserve Fund Analysis is a quarterly report for the State Building Board, which 
shows an analysis of estimated future demands on the contingency reserve fund.  This reserve 
fund only applies to projects funded with State General funds, education funds, or general 
obligation bonds.  The current projection is a small excess of $101,970. This is an improvement 
from the September projection of a deficit of ($998,815). 

 
In October, the Capital Development Project Reserve Fund started with a balance of $1,066,122 
and had one decrease of $501,065 ending with a balance of $565,057. The Capital Improvement 
Project Reserve Fund had 12 transfers to the fund totaling $607,824 and 2 transfers from the fund 
of $277,702, ending with a balance of $6,381,309. 
 
In November, the Capital Development Project Reserve Fund had no decreases and one 2 
increases of $2,967,637 ending with a balance of $3,532,695, while the Capital Improvement 
Project Reserve Fund had multiple transfers to the fund of $1,473,422 and 2 transfers out totaling 
$61, 266, ending with a balance of $7,793,464. 
• Intent language was approved last year that allows DFCM to transfer excess Project 

Reserve and Contingency funds to the new correctional facility project.  It is projected that 
approximately $5.5M in reserves will go to this project.  Additionally, serious ADA issues 
have been identified for the SUU Business Building project.  $900K will go to this project 
along with SUU contributing their share of this cost.  

 
There was discussion on best-intended use regarding the transfer of potential excess capital 
improvement funds to the correctional facility project.  DFCM agreed to present an update on this 
project to the Board in an upcoming meeting.   

 
 ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
December 6, 2017 
Page 9 

 

MOTION: Mr. Nelson moved to adjourn the meeting. The motion was second by Mr. Ligori 
and passed unanimously. 

The meeting adjourned at 11:30 am. 



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Jeff Reddoor 
Date: March 7, 2018 
Subject: Approval of Minutes from the December 6, 2017 Business Meeting 

 

Attached for your review and approval are the minutes from the December 6, 2017 business meeting.



Utah State Building Board 
 

 

BUSINESS MEETING 
 

December 6, 2017 
 
 

 

 
MINUTES 

Members in Attendance:  
Ned Carnahan, Chair 
Chip Nelson 
Gordon Snow 
Joe Burgess 
Wendell Morse 
Joe Ligori  
 
Guests in Attendance: 
Mike Kelley   Attorney General’s Office  
Jeff Reddoor   Building Board 
Patty Yacks   Building Board 
Tani Downing  Department of Administrative Services 
Dorothy Taylor  Department of Administrative Services - DFCM 
Lee Fairbourn  Department of Administrative Services - DFCM 
Jim Russell   Department of Administrative Services - DFCM 
Don Brinkerhoff  Department of Human Services 
Miranda Jones  Governor’s Office of Management and Budget 
Sid Painar   AJC Architects 
Ben Berrett   Utah State University 
Rich Amon   Utah System of Higher Education 
Joseph Demma  Utah System of Technical Colleges 
 
On Wednesday, December 6, 2017, the Utah State Building Board held a business meeting in 
Room 4112 of the State Office Building.  The meeting was called into order at 12:10 pm. 

      
 QUALITY HEALTH INSURANCE COMPLIANCE FOR DFCM AND HIGHER 

EDUCATION 
DFCM requested that the Board review a new requirement to an existing rule that would require 
contractors to provide health insurance to construction workers.  This new requirement would affect 
projects managed by DFCM, the University of Utah (U of U), and Utah State University (USU).  
The requirement calls for two items, to meet the benchmark provided by the State for insurance 
benefits and that the employer contribute at least 50% of the employee share for health insurance.  



Utah State Building Board: Business Meeting Minutes 
December 6, 2017 
Page 2 

 

This requirement applies to all contractors/architects that are prime consultants having a contract 
value greater than $2M; and to subconsultants/subcontractors having a contract value greater than 
$1M.  The U of U and USU are not directly identified in this bill, however, since the Board delegates 
to these institutions there is a requirement to follow DFCM’s processes.  DFCM would like input on 
how these institutions should report compliance and who will be accountable to enforce this 
requirement.  DFCM and the AG have developed forms to help ensure compliance for their 
projects. Additionally, counsel advised of some potential changes to the current statue.  
Contractors found not to be in compliance would be ineligible for the contract award and/or barred.  
The Board explored two options for reporting compliance.  DFCM, U of U, and USU could identify 
which contracts apply to this requirement and report compliance during their monthly administrative 
report to the Board. The Board can also choose to have DFCM manage compliance.  DFCM and 
the AG will work together to develop a rule for the Board’s approval which will include a component 
giving DFCM managing authority over compliance. 

 
 PROPOSED CHANGES TO RULE 23-21, LEASE PROCEDURES  

The Board requested to have further discussion on the proposed amendments to R23-21 
during the November meeting.  Mr. Fairbourn passed out a draft of proposed changes, 
which have been narrowed down since the November meeting.  The Board voted to 
continue this rule back during September meeting.  Some of the changes include extending 
deadlines for the renewal of leases and options, deadlines for materials to be received for 
lease advertisements, and a policy that DFCM will inform agencies that may be affected 
by third party leases.  DFCM will notify the Board when they are ready to present these 
changes for approval. 
 
 BOARD MEMBER BIOS AND INTRODUCTIONS 

Board members and attendees went around the room and introduced themselves.  Members 
were provided with copies of the Handbook for Boards and Commissions, 63A-5-104 and 63A-5-
105, and R23. 
 
 CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT JUSTIFICATION STATEMENTS 

Chair Carnahan initiated discussion on the Board’s justifications for the top five recommended 
FY19 Capital Development projects as he and Director Reddoor prepare to present to IGG during 
the legislative session.  The Board will present their prioritizations as a separate recommendation 
from the statutory requirement to factor in a weighing factor based off of USHE’s rankings. 
 

1.  Utah National Guard – Nephi Readiness Center: The Board has invested $4M in capital 
improvement funds to upgrade the infrastructure.  This project has a high return on 
investment with 75% of costs coming from the federal government if the State will commit 
25% ($4M).  This project also consolidates three facilities. 

2.  Utah Department of Agriculture & Food – William Spry Replacement: This project was 
ranked with the understanding that the facility would be located at the Utah State Fairpark.  
The Board has concerns now that the location has changed and suggested that this could 
have affected the Board’s ranking. 

3.  Davis Technical College – Allied Health Building:  There is considerable growth in the 
medical industry.  This facility will help fill the demonstrated need in the northern part of 
the state. 

4.  Mountainland Technical College – Thanksgiving Point Technology Trades Building: This 
institution has experience significant growth in student population.  There is also a need 
for skilled workers in the tech industry in Utah County 

5.  Dixie State University – New Science Building: DSU’s science program has experienced 
a 20% growth 



Utah State Building Board: Business Meeting Minutes 
December 6, 2017 
Page 3 

 

 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 2:15 pm. 



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Ken Nye, Deputy Chief of Design and Construction for the University of Utah  
Date: March 7, 2018 
Subject: University of Utah: Request to Construct Solar PV Canopies in the Merrill 

Engineering Parking Lot 
 

The University of Utah requests approval to build canopies in the parking lot to the north of the 
Merrill Engineering Building and solar panels on the roof of the canopies.  Panels will be installed 
so they face south toward the Merrill Engineering Building.   This project will be approached as a 
Power Purchase Agreement, which will authorize a third party to own and operate the Solar PV 
system.  The University will purchase the power produced, compensating the third party. 
 
This arrangement will benefit the University and the public by reducing the amount of energy used 
from carbon-based sources.  The cost of the canopies and the solar PV system is expected to cost 
between $6M-$8M.  The system will be owned, financed, operated, and maintained by the third 
party.  No state funds will be requested for the project, O&M, or future improvements.  The 
University’s sole obligation is to purchase power from this source.   







Site Diagram 

 

 



Sample Designs 

 

 

 

(UofU canopies would have lower maximum height than these examples) 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Charles Goodman, Program Administrator  
Date: March 7, 2018 
Subject: Utah State Developmental Center: Demolition Request 

 

Per 63A-5-104 (4 d iii), the Utah State Developmental Center is requesting approval to demolish 2 
old dilapidated unused buildings and 3 concrete silo’s. 
 
1. Building is the Farm Office/shop, built in 1935 (02050) has not consistently been used for the last 
20+ years. 
 
2. Concrete silo’s built in 1935. These 3 were part of the cattle and 4 H program years ago. They 
have not been used for their original purpose since the Cattle and farming programs were 
discontinued. They are located in the area where other buildings were taken down last year, on the 
North West side of the occupied area of the USDC.  
 
3. Building is the Woodland building built in 1967 (00648) This building was vacated last year and 
targeted to be demolished as the new ASH building was constructed and completed. With these 
programs (cattle/farming) and the residential population being moved to the new building, the 
USDC’s view of them being dilapidated and non-usable as well as a liability also that funds should 
not be spent to renovate them. 
 
This project due to costs will be managed in house and coordinated with DFCM, We intend to use 
UCI as the contractor to demo and dispose of off sight all material, this will include final grade and 
some landscape improvements.  The estimated time for the demolition is tentatively 6 weeks from 
the start date. 
 
Costs: 
• 3 ea concrete silos, (#02051) $34,000.00 
• Farm Office/shop (#02050) $49,000.00 
• Woodland (#00648) $96,000.00 
 
The full cost of the demolition will be paid by agency funds.  UCI will file the notice to demolish 
with the State Division of Air Quality upon approval..



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Jeff Reddoor 
Date: March 7, 2018 
Subject: Update on Changes to R23-21 DFCM Lease Procedures 

 

Mr. Fairbourn, DFCM Lease Manager, presented a draft of proposed changes to R23-21 in 
December’s business meeting.  DFCM has decided not to pursue these changes and will move 
forward with the rule as presented and approved by the Board in the September 2017 meeting.



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Ken Nye, University of Utah 
 Ben Berrett, Utah State University 
Date: March 7 2018 
Subject: Administrative Reports for the University of Utah and Utah State University 

 
 

Attached for your review are the Administrative Reports for the University of Utah and Utah State 
University for the period of December 2017 to February 2018. 
 
Attachments: 
Report for U of U 
Report for USU





 

Chief Design & Construction Officer 
1795 East South Campus Dr, Room 201F 

V. Randall Turpin University Services Building 
Salt Lake City, UT  84112-9404 

(801) 581-6510 
FAX (801) 581-6081 

 
 
February 23, 2018 

 

 

Mr. Jeff Reddoor, Director 

Utah State Building Board  

State Office Building Room 4110  

Salt Lake City, UT 84114 

 

Subject:  U of U Administrative Reports for the March 7, 2018 Building Board Meeting. 

 

Dear Jeff: 

 

The following is a summary of the administrative reports for the U of U for the period  

December 20, 2017 – February 20, 2018.  Please include this in the packet for the March 7, 2018 Building 

Board meeting. 

 

Professional Services Agreements (Page 1) 

The Professional Services Agreements awarded during this period consist of: 

5 Design Agreements, 8 Planning/ Study/Other Agreements. 

 

No significant items. 

 

Construction Contracts (Page 2) 

The Construction Contracts awarded during this period consist of: 

0 New Space Contracts, 21 Remodeling Contracts, 2 Site Improvement Contracts. 

 

No significant items. 

 

Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity (Page 3) 

 

Increases:   

The residual balances totaling $84,838.91 for three capital improvement projects that were closed during 

this period were transferred to the Project Reserve as provided by state law. 

 

Decreases:  

None. 

 

Balance: 

The current balance of $754,107 is adequate to meet anticipated demands for currently authorized 

projects and does not represent an excess balance. 

 

Report of Contingency Reserve Fund (Page 4) 

 

Increases:   

None. 

 

 



 

   

Mr. Jeff Reddoor, Building Board Director  

February 23, 2018 

Page 2 

 

 

Decreases: 

Project 21911; North Chemistry 3rd Floor Lab System Upgrade 

This transfer of $47,537 covers the cost of six unforeseen conditions discovered during demolition and 

abatement.  This involved pipes, ducts, and additional hazardous materials that were hidden within walls 

which then had to be relocated or removed. 

 

Project 21642; HTW Completion 

This transfer of $28,048 primarily covers the cost of a buried vault having dimensions different than 

expected which required changes in the piping and valves that were placed inside the vault. 

 

Balance: 

Our analysis indicates that the current balance of $2,980,511 is adequate to complete the projects that 

have been authorized and it does not reflect an excess balance. The balance is currently at a high point as 

FY18 funding has been moved into the Contingency Reserve and most of the FY18 projects have not yet 

proceeded very far into construction. 

 

 

Representatives from the University of Utah will attend the Building Board meeting to address any 

questions the Board may have. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Kenneth E. Nye 

Deputy Chief Design & Construction Officer 

University of Utah 

 

Enclosures 

 

 

cc:  University of Utah Trustees 

       Jim Russell, Director DFCM 



Page 1

Professional Services Agreements

Awarded From December 20, 2017 - February 20, 2018
Item 

Number
Project 
Number Project Name Firm Name Project Budget Contract Amount

Design
1 22159 USA Stairway Repairs Reaveley Engineers and Associates 350,000$          22,000$                
2 22168 Dentistry L3 Tenant Improvement MHTN Architects Inc. 315,774$          23,825$                
3 22179 Engineering Design for Wasatch Dr. East Parking Lot Meier Enterprises Inc 2,611,125$       90,430$                
4 70182 NBICU Linen HVAC Modification Van Boerum and Frank Associates 80,000$            10,800$                
5 70189 MCCU Patient Room Door and Window Replacement Architectural Nexus 525,000$          45,024$                

Planning/Study/ Other
6 21937 Campus Energy Efficiency Project Health and Safety Services Inc  $     30,000,000  $                  1,996 
7 22005 MEB Building Assessment Study MHTN Architects Inc 2,712,000$       150,000$              
8 22085 Soccer Stadium - Performance Specs and Program Edwards and Daniels Architects 3,643,000$       90,000$                
9 22094 Continuing Education  - 540 Arapeen Remodel - Commissioning ETC Group 3,349,380$       25,200$                
10 22155 Rice Eccles Feasibility and Market Study Valentiner Crane Brunjes Onyon 239,500$          224,900$              
11 22170 Fine Arts West Feasibility Study FFKR Architects 30,000$            25,000$                
12 22173 Utah County Clinic - Master Plan Study Dixon and Associates 27,000$            27,000$                
13 70188 525 High Rise Compliance Study AE Agreement TSA Architects 25,000$            25,000$                



Page 2

Construction Contracts

Awarded From December 20, 2017 - February 20, 2018

Item 
Number

Project 
Number Project Name Firm Name  Project Budget  Contract 

Amount 

Construction - New Space

1 21415 Building 197 - Residence ADA & Functional Upgrade Paulsen Construction 1,593,830$       1,489,369$         
2 21415 Building 197 - Abatement Eagle Environmental Inc. 1,593,830$       26,210$              
3 21921 Varsity Film Room Atmosphere Studios, LLC 256,723$          16,000$              
4 22007 Southwest Chiller Plant 2nd Chiller & Demo of Chemistry Plant Mechanical Service and Systems Inc. 2,798,643$       674,698$            
5 22010 Campus Site Lighting Upgrade - Lower Campus All Tech Electric Inc. 850,000$          435,500$            
6 22042 BSB Electrical Upgrades Progressive Industrial Electrical, Inc 335,684$          160,000$            
7 22067 Bldg #533 EIHG Elevator Replacement Rod Lewis Construction LLC 907,000$          598,563$            
8 22089 Marriott Center for Dance Rigging Replacement and ImprovemeBroderick Henderson Construction 582,120$          496,000$            
9 22094 Continuing Education  - 540 Arapeen Remodel Paulsen Construction 3,349,380$       2,444,992$         
10 22094 540 Apapeen - Hazmat Abatement and Removal Eagle Environmental 3,349,380$       32,165$              
11 22096 Replace HTW Auxiliary Equipment Friendly Plumber LLC 788,041$          620,000$            
12 22105 Remodel Grants & Contracts Accounting Suite J L Hardy Construction 485,000$          336,123$            
13 22123 SAEC New Café Remodel Slider Constrction Inc. 268,055$          225,536$            
14 22127 Eye Wash Stations Replacement Corrio Construction 500,000$          110,000$            
15 22133 Student Advisory Center at Sutton Judd Construction 121,789$          99,306$              
16 70123 HCH Xray Suite and Diagnostics Remodel - Flooring Designteam 780,608$          19,934$              
17 70123 HCH Xray Suite and Diagnostics Remodel Robert I Merrill Co. 780,608$          68,254$              
18 70123 HCH Xray Suite Remodel - Drywall Pete King Commercial LLC 780,608$          10,856$              
19 70142 Aim A Remodel (CCTS Backfill) Jacobsen Construction 2,400,000$       6,000$                
20 70146 HCH Clinic 3A Extension Jacobsen Construction 1,933,000$       7,000$                
21 70153 SOM Nurses Station Update on 5 West Robert I Merrill Co. 116,000$          19,633$              

22 22095 Natural History Museum Paving Replacement ACME Construction 538,837$          478,212$            
23 22121 HCI Patio Labyrinth Gramoll Construction 180,000$          14,672$              

   Construction - Site Improvement

Construction - Remodeling



Page 3

University Of Utah
Report Of Project Reserve Fund Activity
For the Period of December 20, 2017 to February 20, 2018

PROJECT PROJECT TITLE TRANSFER DESCRIPTION FOR % OF
NUMBER AMOUNT CONTINGENCY TRANSFER CONSTR.

BUDGET
BEGINNING BALANCE 669,268.26   

INCREASES TO PROJECT RESERVE FUND:
21832 HEDCO Fire Protection System 67,271.00       Residual project funds 22.15%
21631  Field House Modifications to House Chiller Plant 16,934.53       Residual project funds 0.90%
21519  SW Campus Chiller Distribution 633.38          Residual project funds 0.06%

DECREASES TO PROJECT RESERVE FUND:

CURRENT BALANCE OF PROJECT RESERVE: 754,107.17   



page 4

University Of Utah
Report Of Contingency Reserve Fund Activity
For the Period of December 20, 2017 to February 20, 2018

PROJ. NO. DESCRIPTION CURRENT TOTAL % OF PROJECT
TRANSFERS TRANSFERS CONSTR. STATUS

 FROM BUDGET
CONTINGENCY

BEGINNING BALANCE 3,059,696.60

INCREASES TO CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND
None

DECREASES TO CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND

NEW CONSTRUCTION
None

REMODELING
21911 N. Chemistry 3rd Floor Lab System Upgrade (47,537.43)          48,634.43         2.27% Construction
21642 HTW Distribution Completion (28,047.94)          837,197.52       11.16% Construction
22017 Emergency Generators & Life Safety Transfer Switches (3,600.00)            3,600.00           0.55% Construction

ENDING BALANCE 2,980,511.23





 
 
 

1445 Old Main Hill           Logan, UT  84322-1445            Ph: (435) 797-1146            Fax: (435) 797-0710           www.usu.edu/vpbus 

February 23, 2018 
 
Jeff Reddoor, Building Board Manager  
Division of Facilities Construction 
   and Management 
State Office Building Room 4110 
PO Box 141160 
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-1284 
 
Dear Jeff: 
 
SUBJECT: USU Administrative Reports for the March 2018 Building Board Meeting 
 
The following is a summary of the administrative reports for USU for the period to 01/26/18 to 02/23/18. 
  
Professional Contracts, 4 contracts issued (Page 1) 
Comments are provided on the report. 
 
Construction Contracts, 1 contract issued (Page 2) 
Comments are provided on the report. 
 
Report of Contingency Reserve Fund (Page 3) 
No projects contributed to or needed funds from the contingency reserve fund during this reporting period.  
Based on an internal risk assessment, the University finds this fund’s balance to be adequate. 
 
Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity (Page 4) 
Three projects contributed to and no projects needed funds from the reserve fund during this reporting 
period. Based on an internal risk assessment, the University finds this fund’s balance to be adequate. 
 
Current Delegated Projects List (Pages 5-7) 
Of USU’s 76 projects, 8 are pending, 13 are in the design/study phase, 30 are in construction, 22 are 
substantially complete and 3 are complete. The three projects completed during this period were 
Concrete Replacement FY17, Medium Voltage Upgrade FY16 and Research Greenhouse Boiler 
Replacement. 
 
Representatives from Utah State University will attend the Building Board meeting to address any 
questions the Board may have. 
       

Sincerely,       
 

       
 
David T. Cowley 

      Vice President for 
        Business and Finance 
DTC/ah 
c:  Kimberly Henrie 
     Jim Russell 



Page 1 of 7

Project Name Firm Name A/E Budget Fee Amount Comments

1 Parking Lot Paving FY18 Cache Landmark $36,000.00 $5,080.00 Survey and civil design 900 N Sidewalk

MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACTS

2 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY16 Dixon Information $191,004.00 $650.00 Bulk samples USU Blanding, Caine Home

3 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY18 Dixon Information $139,099.00 $111.00 Bulk samples MCC Price, Facilities, Aggie Ice Cream

4 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY18 ALS Laboratory $139,099.00 $15.00 Bulk sample paint Caine Home

Professional Contracts
Awarded From 01/26/18 to 02/23/18



Page 2 of 7

Project Firm Name Design Firm Const Budget Contract Amt Comments

   MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACTS

1 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY16 USU Facilities Planning $191,004.00 $7,996.71 Fire alarm panel replacement Kaysville
   and Design

Construction Contracts
Awarded From  01/26/18 to 02/23/18



Page 3 of 7

Total
Transfers % to %

Current To (From) Construction Completed
Project Title Transfers Contingency Budget Project Status (Paid)

BEGINNING BALANCE $92,185.65

INCREASES TO CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND
   None

DECREASES FROM CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND
   None

ENDING BALANCE $92,185.65

Report of Contingency Reserve Fund
From 01/26/18 to 02/23/18



Page 4 of 7

% of
Transfer Construction

Project Title Amount Description Budget
BEGINNING BALANCE $627,113.09

INCREASES TO PROJECT RESERVE FUND
   Concrete Replacement FY17 5,000.00 Close project 1.54%
   Medium Voltage Upg FY16 23,811.32 Close project 2.03%
   Research Greenhouse Boiler Replacement 31,321.16 Close project 21.60%

DECREASES TO PROJECT RESERVE FUND
   None

ENDING BALANCE $687,245.57

Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity
From 01/26/18 to 02/23/18



Page 5 of 7

 

Project Project
Number Project Name Phase Budget

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT/IMPROVEMENT
A40823 BCC Trail & Historical Bldg Design 200,000            
A36736 Bike Racks/Site Furn FY17 Construction 45,662              
A39189 Bike Racks/Site Furn FY18 Construction 54,795              
A39204 Bio Tech Lab Controls Design 462,135            
A38008 Blue Square Parking Expansion Construction 559,564            
A28999 Building Commissioning FY14 Sub Completion 196,296            
A39203 Campus Mapping Design 200,000            
A40762 Campus Wide Metering Construction 92,283              
A39196 Champ/OM Hill Sewer Line Repl Design 1,299,200         
A34283 Chilled Water Infrastructure FY16 Construction 357,878            
A36734 Classroom Upgrades FY17  Construction 295,598            
A39191 Classroom Upgrades FY18 Construction 183,907            
A34284 Classroom/Auditorium Upgrades FY16 Construction 292,487            
A34285 Concrete Replacement FY16 Sub Completion 243,096            
A36735 Concrete Replacement FY17  Complete 375,194            
A39188 Concrete Replacement FY18 Construction 381,255            
A38598 Edith Bowen Playground Construction 413,300            
A40585 Education 413 Remodel Pending 381,943            
A40010 Education Atrium Remodel Sub Completion 421,681            
A38903 Education Suite 109 Remodel Sub Completion 419,173            
A29004 Emergency Generator FY14 Sub Completion 250,390            
A31325 Emergency Generator FY15 Pending 229,872            
A36740 FAV Photo Lab Safety Ventilation  Construction 370,524            
A34287 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY16 Sub Completion 191,004            
A36738 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY17  Sub Completion 139,916            
A39187 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY18 Construction 146,599            
A39004 HPER Admin/Nursing Remodel Sub Completion 466,251            
A31328 HVAC Controls Upgrade FY15 Pending 228,311            
A36468 Hydraulics Lab Landscape FY17 Construction 93,033              
A38777 IC Irrigation Trunk Line Construction 394,141            

02/23/18
Current Delegated Projects List



Page 6 of 7

A34107 Kaysville Building Addition Sub Completion 3,321,185         
A39202 Lighting Control Upgrade Design 69,209              
A38594 Lillywhite Interior Remodel Design 1,686,568         
A34290 Medium Voltage Upgrade FY16 Complete 1,158,063         
A36469 Medium Voltage Upgrade FY17 Construction 1,268,163         
A39185 Medium Voltage Upgrade FY18 Construction 1,493,182         
A35676 Merrill Cazier Lib Testing Ctr  Construction 2,108,650         
A39193 NFS Lab Ventilation Replace Pending 950,154            
A39205 NR Fire Alarm Upgrade Pending 138,418            
A39194 Parking Lot Paving FY18 Construction 415,455            
A39195 Parking Lot Repair & Seal Construction 138,027            
A35677 PDP Air Handling Units  Sub Completion 429,879            
A35971 PDP Refreshment Sub Completion 793,929            
A31333 Planning & Design FY15 Sub Completion 175,075            
A34294 Planning & Design FY16 Sub Completion 129,790            
A36741 Planning & Design FY17 Design/Study 85,457              
A39186 Planning & Design FY18 Design/Study 175,000            
A39207 Ray B. West Reroof Construction 414,651            
A39201 Research Greenhouse Boiler Rpl Complete 102,122            
A39206 SDL Fire Alarm Upgrade Pending 166,101            
A39198 SE Sidewalks & Safety Lighting Construction 792,213            
A31334 Sign System FY15 Sub Completion 47,193              
A39190 Sign System FY18 Pending 45,662              
A31335 Site & Safety Lighting Construction 322,525            
A39502 SLC Campus Relocation Construction 4,945,295         
A34296 South Farm Fire Lane/Hydrants FY16 Construction 436,467            
A40833 South Farm Loafing Shed Construction 154,737            
A37302 South Farm New Dairy Barn  Construction 2,268,353         
A39192 Stairs Replacement N Terrace Sub Completion 570,683            
A38143 Student Organic Farm Facility Design 146,666            
A40454 Tooele Landscape Improvements Design 170,104            
A35569 Townhouse Stucco Proj Bldg 3  Pending 139,470            
A34298 UBC Infrastructure Improvements Sub Completion 1,193,514         
A36742 Univ Inn to Widstoe Steamline-Construction  Sub Completion 1,022,331         
A34299 Univ Inn/Widstoe Steam Line Replacement Sub Completion 75,000              
A40847 USTAR Autoclave Installation Sub Completion 99,778              
C11614 USUE Blanding Campus Mechanical FY16 Construction 49,181              
C11781 USUE Blanding Housing Fire Safety Design 170,400            
C11508 USUE Career Center Upgrades Sub Completion 1,071,941         



Page 7 of 7

C11615 USUE Geary Theatre Bldg Upgrades Sub Completion 7,103,037         
C11461 USUE Infrastructure/Automation Upgrade Construction 461,857            
C11709 USUE Soccer Fields Sub Completion 796,444            
A36118 Utility Meter Upgrades FY16 Construction 91,500              
A34300 VCT Tile Replacement in Hallways Construction 331,255            
A34301 Vet Science Electrical Upgrade FY16 Design 98,753              
A39197 Water Lab Front Bridge Design 50,000              

TOTAL (76) $47,258,925



Utah State Building Board 
Gary R. Herbert 

  Governor 4110 State Office Building 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84114
Phone  (801) 538-3018 
Fax  (801) 538-3267 

MEMORANDUM

To  Utah State Building Board 
From:  Jeff Reddoor 
Date:  March 7, 2017 
Subject: Administrative Report for DFCM 
Presenter: Jim Russell, DFCM Director 

The following is a summary of the Administrative Report for DFCM: 

Lease Report (Pages 1 - 6) 
No significant items 

Professional Services Agreements, 59 Agreements Issued (Pages 7 - 11) 
The Professional Services Agreements awarded during this period consist of: 
44 Design Agreements, 15 Planning/Study/Other Agreements. 
No significant items 

Construction Contracts, 59 Contracts Issued (Pages 12 - 16) 
The Construction Contracts awarded during this period consist of: 6 New Space Contracts, 32 
Remodeling Contracts, 5 Paving/Roofing Contracts, 16 Other. 

Item #6, Fremont AP&P Bldg. Renovation 
Item #11, Farmington Public Safety Bldg. rooftop units’ replacement  
Project Reserve funds will be used to award this construction contract balance 

Item #7, CUCF Water Softener Mineral Tank Replacement 
Item #52, Mountainland Tech Orem Bldg. mechanical system upgrade  
Agency funds and project reserve funds will be used to award this construction contract balance 

Item #24, Dixie State University Human Performance & Student Wellness Center 
This is a CM/GC agreement, the balance of the construction costs will be added by future change 
orders.  



DFCM Administrative Reports 
Page 2 
 
 
Report of Contingency Reserve Fund (Pages 17 – 72) 
Increases 
Increases are from budgeted contingency transfers and decrease change orders/modifications 
 
Decreases, Capital Development 
Capital Development started period with $5,390,349, had no increases/adjustments and 
11transfers to projects totaling $1,668,268, ending with a balance of $3,722,081. 
 
SLCC Westpointe CTE Building 
This transfer of $365,769 covers change order #11.  See attached pages #21 - 25 for details and 
contract summary. 
 
Report of Contingency Reserve Fund Continued (Pages 17 – 72) 
Decreases, Capital Development Continued 
Weber Valley Multi-use Youth Center  
This transfer of $259,751 covers change orders #6 - 10.  See attached pages #26 - 35 for details 
and contract summary. 
 
Weber State Univ. Lindquist Hall Building Renovation 
This transfer of $196,970 covers the State’s share of change order #4.  See attached pages #36 - 
39 for details and contract summary. 
 
USU Clinical Services Building 
This transfer of $175,700 covers change orders #17 and #18.  See attached pages #40 - 47 for 
details and contract summary. 
 
UVU New Classroom Building  
This transfer of $164,138 covers change order #27.  See attached pages #48 - 51 for details and 
contract summary. 
 
Unified State Lab Module #2 
This transfer of $151,153 covers change order #27.  See attached pages #52 - 55 for details and 
contract summary. 
 
University of Utah Huntsman Cancer Research Facility Phase IV 
This transfer of $118,583 covers the State’s share of change order #26.  See attached pages #56 - 
64 for details and contract summary. 
 
Decreases, Capital Improvement 
Capital Improvement started period with $6,001,657 and ended with $8,090,029, with 19 
transfers to projects totaling $289,496 and multiple transfers to the fund of 2,377,868.   
 



DFCM Administrative Reports 
Page 3 

Governor’s Mansion Kitchen Remodel, Basement Remodel, and Mechanical Upgrade  
This transfer of $70,943 covers change orders #4 - 6.  See attached pages #65- 69 for details and 
contract summary. 

Draper National Guard Headquarters Bldg. Replace Electrical Service Distribution 
This transfer of $54,804 covers change order #1.  See attached pages #70- 72 for details and 
contract summary. 

Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity (Pages #73 - 76) 
The development project reserve had two decreases for $300,000 and one 1 increase of  
$706,771 ending with a balance of $3,939,465, while the capital improvement project reserve 
fund had multiple transfers to the fund of $859,299 and 9 transfers out totaling $318,621, ending 
with a balance of $9,264,764.    

Increases 
The increases reflect savings on projects that were transferred to Project Reserve per statute. 

Decreases 
The decreases are primarily to award construction contracts that are over budget. 

This report also includes a total by Agency/Institution for increases and decreases to this reserve 
fund, on a rolling year basis.  We will keep this updated, so you can see who has given and 
drawn from the Project Reserve Fund over the past year.   

Contingency Reserve Fund Analysis (Pages #77 - 83) 
This is a quarterly report for the State Building Board, which shows an analysis of estimated 
future demands on the contingency reserve fund.  It should be noted that this reserve fund only 
applies to projects funded with State General funds, education funds, or general obligation 
bonds.  The analysis assumes that contingency funds are utilized evenly over the life of the 
project.  In reality, some projects have greater draws early in the project and others late in the 
project.  So it is reasonable to assume that this averages into an even utilization of the 
contingency budget over the life of the project.  The analysis lists all open construction contracts 
on open projects that have contributed to and are eligible to draw from the contingency reserve 
fund, along with the percentage completion of the construction contract.  The current projection 
is an excess of $326,748.   

Statewide Funds Reports (Pages #84 - 91) 
No significant items 

DDW:jr:ccn 
Attachments 



-1-



-2-



-3-



-4-



-5-



-6-



-7-



-8-



-9-



-10-



-11-



-12-



-13-



-14-



-15-



-16-



-17-



-18-



-19-



-20-



-21--



-22-



-23-



-24-



-25-



-26-



-27-



-28-



-29-



-30-



-31-



-32-



-33-



-34-



-35-



-36-



-37-



-38-



-39-



-40-



-41-



-42-



-43-



-44-



-45-



-46-



-47-



-48-



-49-



-50-



-51-



-52-



-53-



-54-



-55-



-56-



-57-



-58-



-59-



-60-



-61-



-62-



-63-



-64-



-65-



-66-



-67-



-68-



-69-



-70-



-71-



-72-



-73-



-74-



-75-



-76-



-77-



-78



-79-



-80-



-81-



-82-



-83-



-84-



-85-



-86-



-87-



-88-



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Jeff Reddoor 
Date: March 7, 2018 
Subject: 2018 Legislative Session Update 

 

Director Reddoor will provide an update on the 2018 Legislative Session.


	March 2018 Agenda
	1 Approval of Minutes from the November 8, 2017 Board Meeting
	2 Approval of Minutes from the December 6, 2017 Board Meeting
	3 Approval of Minutes from the December 6, 2017 Business Meeting
	4 University of Utah: Request to Construct Solar PV Canopies in the Merrill Engineering Parking Lot
	5 Utah State Developmental Center: Demolition Request
	6 Update on Changes to R23-21 DFCM Lease Procedures
	7 Administrative Reports for the University of Utah and Utah State University
	8 Administrative Report for DFCM
	9 2018 Legislative Update



